MINUTES CITY COUNCIL MEETING FOLLOWED BY PRYOR PUBLIC WORKS AUTHORITY MEETING CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA TUESDAY, DECEMBER 6TH, 2022 AT 6:00 P.M.

The City Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma met in regular session on the above date and time in the Council Chamber upstairs at City Hall, 12 North Rowe Street in Pryor Creek, Oklahoma. This meeting was followed immediately by a meeting of the Pryor Public Works Authority. Notice of these meetings was posted on the East bulletin board located outside to the South of the entrance doors and the City website at www.pryorcreek.org. Notice was also e-mailed to The Paper newspaper and e-mailed to the Council members.

1. CALL TO ORDER, PRAYER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL.

Mayor Lees called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. The Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance were led by Steve Smith. Roll Call was conducted by City Clerk Eva Smith. Council members present included Dennis Nance, Steve Smith, Randy Chitwood, Evett Barham, Chris Gonthier, Lori Siever. Members absent: Choya Shropshire.

Department Heads and other City Officials present: City Attorney Kim Ritchie, Police Chief Dennis Nichols, Assistant Fire Chief James Baumert, Emergency Management Director Johnny Janzen, Street Superintendent Buddy Glenn, Golf Course Director Dennis Bowman, Library Director Cari Rerat and Recreation Center Director Jessica Tiger.

Others present: Police Sergeant Dustin Van Horn, Jared Crisp, Steve Powell, Dalton Powell, Jack Hardy, Mary Helen Hardy, Terry Lamar, Gilbert Graybill, Autumn Graybill, Zac Doyle, Drew Stott, Marshel Morrison, Nena Roberts, Brent Taylor, Monty Littlefield, Christie Littlefield, Adam Anderson, Phil Rerat, Bruce Smith, Angela Smith, Houston Brittain, KC Summerlin, Samantha Williams, Merideth Olson, Terry Aylward, Brian Montgomery, Phyllis Radcliffe, Darien Radcliffe, Milas Radcliffe and Matthew Radcliffe.

2. PETITIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE. (LIMITED TO 5 MINUTES, MUST REQUEST IN ADVANCE.) There were no petitions.

3. DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORTS IF NEEDED: a. Building Inspector

No report.

b. Emergency Management

Janzen reported that they have received acceptance of the Emergency Management grant.

c. Fire

Baumert reported that last month they responded to 71 calls. They are currently involved in training.

d. Golf

Bowman reported that the golf course is doing very well. They are working on maintenance, leaf removal, repairs and painting. The Halloween Festival went really well. There is a membership sale going on, and they are working to secure dates for upcoming tournaments.

e. Library

Rerat reported that the library is set to open on December 19th. The phones are now working.

f. Parks / Cemetery

No report.

g. Police

Nichols had no report, but he asked if anyone had questions.

h. Recreation Center

Tiger reported that they received 121 new members last month and kept retention at 85%. The new LED lights have been ordered for the parking lot.

i. Street

Glenn reported that they have been running the sweeper to gather the leaves, and they are trimming tree limbs. They completed the handicapped parking at the library and police and fire buildings. They have salt and sand set back for the winter.

4. MAYOR'S REPORT:

a. Discussion and possible action regarding accepting the resignation of Jon Ketcher, City Council Ward 1, effective 12/01/22.

Motion was made by Gonthier, second by Smith to approve accepting the resignation of Jon Ketcher, City Council Ward 1, effective 12/01/22. The Council members thanked Jon for his service on Council. Voting yes: Nance, Smith, Chitwood, Barham, Gonthier, Siever. Voting no: none.

b. Discussion and possible action regarding accepting Mayor's nomination of Terry Lamar to Ward 1 Council seat vacated by Jon Ketcher, effective immediately, term ending May 2023.

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Smith to approve accepting Mayor's nomination of Terry Lamar to Ward 1 Council seat vacated by Jon Ketcher, effective immediately, term ending May 2023. Voting yes: Smith, Chitwood, Barham, Gonthier, Siever, Nance. Voting no: none.

Kim Ritchie administered the Oath of Office and Loyalty Oath to Lamar.

c. Report from Economic Development Trust Authority.

Adam Anderson gave a report from Economic Development Trust Authority.

d. Discussion and possible action regarding requesting funds from City Council from Fund 68 (October 31st, 2022 fund balance: \$271,636.92) in the amount of \$55,000.00 for fiscal year 2022-2023 for funding of a Memorandum Of Agreement between the Pryor Creek Economic Development Trust Authority and Pryor Main Street for services to be performed by Main Street in connection with economic development in the main street corridor.

Motion was made by Barham, second by Siever to approve request of funds from City Council from Fund 68 (October 31st, 2022 fund balance: \$271,636.92) in the amount of \$55,000.00 for fiscal year 2022-2023 for funding of a Memorandum Of Agreement between the Pryor Creek Economic Development Trust Authority and Pryor Main Street for services to be performed by Main Street in connection with economic development in the main street corridor. Voting yes: Chitwood, Barham, Siever, Lamar, Nance, Smith. Abstaining, counting as a no vote: Gonthier. Voting no: none.

e. Discussion and possible action to declare the former Pryor Creek Police Department property located at 214 S. Mill St. with a legal description of PRYOR ORIGINAL BLK 61, LOTS 5, 6, 7, 8 surplus property.

Motion was made by Smith, second by Chitwood to approve declaring the former Pryor Creek Police Department property located at 214 S. Mill St. with a legal description of PRYOR ORIGINAL BLK 61, LOTS 5, 6, 7, 8 surplus property. Voting yes: Barham, Gonthier, Siever, Lamar, Nance, Smith, Chitwood. Voting no: none.

f. Discussion and possible action to approve solicitation of sealed bids for the purchase of the former Pryor Creek Police Department property located at 214 S. Mill St. with notice by publication in a local legal publication specifying bids be submitted to the City of Pryor Creek, City Clerk, due January 6th, 2023 to be opened and read at 2 p.m. on that date in City Council Chamber; and further specifying that the City reserves the right to reject all bids as in the best interest of the City.

Motion was made by Smith, second by Chitwood to approve solicitation of sealed bids for the purchase of the former Pryor Creek Police Department property located at 214 S. Mill St. with notice by publication in a local legal publication specifying bids be submitted to the City of Pryor Creek, City Clerk, due January 6th, 2023 to be opened and read at 2 p.m. on that date in City Council Chamber; and further specifying that the City reserves the right to reject all bids as in the best interest of the City. Voting yes: Gonthier, Siever, Lamar, Nance, Smith, Chitwood, Barham. Voting no: none.

g. Discussion and possible action regarding the approval of ARPA funds from Fund 05 to be transferred as needed to Fund 87 for the purpose of completing our Emergency Center / Library Expansion projects contracted financial obligations.

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Smith to approve ARPA funds from Fund 05 to be transferred as needed to Fund 87 for the purpose of completing our Emergency Center / Library Expansion projects contracted financial obligations. Voting yes: Siever, Lamar, Nance, Smith, Chitwood, Barham, Gonthier. Voting no: none.

Mayor moved to the Addendum.

ADDENDUM CITY COUNCIL MEETING TUESDAY, DECEMBER 6TH, 2022 AT 6:00 P.M.

1. Discussion and possible action regarding using available ARPA funds to pay the current indebtedness of the city regarding construction of the police and fire station, as well as the remodel of the library. No new expenses pertaining to these projects will be allowed without prior approval of the City Council.

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Smith to approve using available ARPA funds to pay the current indebtedness of the city regarding construction of the police and fire station, as well as the remodel of the library. No new expenses pertaining to these projects will be allowed without prior approval of the City Council. Voting yes: Lamar, Nance, Smith, Chitwood, Barham, Gonthier, Siever. Voting no: none.

2. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of Application and Certification For Payment #21 dated November 3rd, 2022 to CMSWillowbrook, Inc. in the amount of \$499,485.48 from Fund 05, Covid Reimbursement (2020).

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Smith to approve Application and Certification For Payment #21 dated November 3rd, 2022 to CMSWillowbrook, Inc. in the amount of \$499,485.48 from Fund 05, Covid Reimbursement (2020).

Chitwood and Smith then amended their motion and second to table approval of Application and Certification For Payment #21 dated November 3rd, 2022 to CMSWillowbrook, Inc. in the amount of \$499,485.48 from Fund 05, Covid Reimbursement (2020) until a CMSWillowbrook representative can be present to answer questions.

Chitwood and Smith then amended their motion and second to have Council members identify any questions they have of the items on the pay application to provide to CMSWillowbrook a week in advance to give them ample time to prepare. Voting yes: Nance, Smith, Chitwood, Barham, Gonthier, Siever, Lamar. Voting no: none.

Mayor moved back to the regular Agenda.

4. MAYOR'S REPORT:

h. Discussion and possible action to remove from the table Item 4.a. from the November 15th, 2022 meeting.

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Gonthier to approve removing from the table Item 4.a. from the November 15th, 2022 meeting. Voting yes: Smith, Chitwood, Barham, Gonthier, Siever, Lamar, Nance. Voting no: none.

i. Discussion and possible action regarding a request from the Castle Theater Ad Hoc Committee for a sum of \$30,000.00 from General Repair and Maintenance Account #02-201-5091 to be paid to Dawson Roofing for Castle Theater Roofing Project. Other bids were requested from McGill Roofing, AAA Property Restoration, LLC, and Allwine Roofing but were not received.

Motion was made by Smith, second by Barham to approve a request from the Castle Theater Ad Hoc Committee for a sum of \$30,000.00 from General Repair and Maintenance Account #02-201-5091 to be paid to Dawson Roofing for Castle Theater Roofing Project. Other bids were requested from McGill Roofing, AAA Property Restoration, LLC, and Allwine Roofing but were not received. Jack Hardy and Jennie LaFave spoke regarding the need to stop any more damage being done to the building from the roof leaks. Voting yes: Chitwood, Barham, Gonthier, Siever, Lamar, Nance, Smith. Voting no: none.

j. Discussion and possible action regarding extending the time of service of the Castle Theater Ad Hoc Committee to March 30th, 2023.

Motion was made by Gonthier, second by Chitwood to approve extending the time of service of the Castle Theater Ad Hoc Committee to March 30th, 2023. Voting yes: Barham, Gonthier, Siever, Lamar, Nance, Smith, Chitwood. Voting no: none.

Mayor called for a 10-minute recess at 8:15 p.m.

Mayor called the meeting back in session at 8:25 p.m.

k. Discussion and possible action regarding authorizing City of Pryor Creek Street Department to invoice Municipal Utility Board \$19,050.00, to deposit into Fund 14, for additional work performed by Dunham's Asphalt Services, Inc. on the 2021 Street Maintenance Project. The work and the amount is due to unforeseen and required components of utilities relocation during the project. The documentation for this amount is the four items on page 2 of Application and Certification for Payment #5 RET from Dunham's Asphalt Services, Inc., which is included in the packet.

Motion was made by Gonthier, second by Chitwood to approve authorizing City of Pryor Creek Street Department to invoice Municipal Utility Board \$19,050.00, to deposit into Fund 14, for additional work performed by Dunham's Asphalt Services, Inc. on the 2021 Street Maintenance Project. The work and the amount is due to unforeseen and required components of utilities relocation during the project. The documentation for this amount is the four items on page 2 of Application and Certification for Payment #5 RET from Dunham's Asphalt Services, Inc., which is included in the packet. Voting yes: Gonthier, Siever, Lamar, Nance, Smith, Chitwood, Barham. Voting no: none.

1. Discussion and possible action regarding authorization to pay Dunham's Asphalt Services, Inc. on the 2021 Street Maintenance Project the amount of \$14,342.00 from Street Asphalt Overlay Account #14-145-5410 for unforeseen and required components of utilities relocation and street patching as

documented. This action is necessary to close out the job and pay all we owe to the contractor. Motion was made by Gonthier, second by Smith to approve authorization to pay Dunham's Asphalt Services, Inc. on the 2021 Street Maintenance Project the amount of \$14,342.00 from Street Asphalt Overlay Account #14-145-5410 for unforeseen and required components of utilities relocation and street patching as documented. This action is necessary to close out the job and pay all we owe to the contractor. Voting yes: Siever, Lamar, Nance, Smith, Chitwood, Barham, Gonthier. Voting no: none.

m. Discussion and possible action regarding payment to Municipal Utility Board for three invoices totaling \$20,968.27 from Street Asphalt Overlay Account #14-145-5410 for materials only which were needed due to unforeseen and required components of the 2021 Street Maintenance Project.

Motion was made by Gonthier, second by Chitwood to approve payment to Municipal Utility Board for three invoices totaling \$20,968.27 from Street Asphalt Overlay Account #14-145-5410 for materials only which were needed due to unforeseen and required components of the 2021 Street Maintenance Project. Voting yes: Lamar, Nance, Smith, Chitwood, Barham, Gonthier, Siever. Voting no: none.

n. Discussion and possible action calling for an audit and investigation concerning the construction of the new police and fire station as well as the remodel of the library. This investigation and audit would include, but not be limited to the following: plans, bonds, change orders, affidavits, contractor forms and all paperwork and affairs related, but not limited to the above-mentioned projects as well as the indebtedness of the city. This audit and investigation will be independent. Person(s) conducting the

audit and investigation will be selected by the City Council and will report directly to the Council. Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Smith to approve calling for an audit and investigation concerning the construction of the new police and fire station as well as the remodel of the library. This investigation and audit would include, but not be limited to the following: plans, bonds, change orders, affidavits, contractor forms and all paperwork and affairs related, but not limited to the above-mentioned projects as well as the indebtedness of the city. This audit and investigation will be independent. Person(s) conducting the audit and investigation will be selected by the City Council and will report directly to the Council. Voting yes: Nance, Smith, Chitwood, Barham, Gonthier, Siever, Lamar. Voting no: none.

5. CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT:

a. Discussion and possible action regarding an Ordinance Amending Title 3, Chapter 2A, Section 7
Regarding Mobile Food Services "Restrictions on Location as to Time" by repealing said Section 7 of Title 3, Chapter 2A; and providing for repealer and severability. (Second reading was waived at the November 15th, 2022 Council meeting. No vote was taken for approval of ordinance.)

Motion was made by Gonthier, second by Chitwood to approve Ordinance #2022-1 Amending Title 3, Chapter 2A, Section 7 Regarding Mobile Food Services "Restrictions on Location as to Time" by repealing said Section 7 of Title 3, Chapter 2A; and providing for repealer and severability. (Second reading was waived at the November 15th, 2022 Council meeting. No vote was taken for approval of ordinance.) Kim Ritchie stated that this action is simply to finish the process from the last meeting. Voting yes: Smith, Chitwood, Barham, Gonthier, Siever, Lamar, Nance. Voting no: none.

b. Discussion and possible action regarding a resolution declaring the eligibility of the City of Pryor Creek to submit an application to the Oklahoma Department of Transportation for use of Transportation Alternatives Program funds.

Motion was made by Gonthier, second by Chitwood to approve Resolution #2022 - 9 declaring the eligibility of the City of Pryor Creek to submit an application to the Oklahoma Department of Transportation for use of Transportation Alternatives Program funds. Voting yes: Chitwood, Barham, Gonthier, Siever, Lamar, Nance, Smith. Voting no: none.

6. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON CONSENT AGENDA.

(Items deemed non-controversial and routine in nature to be approved by one motion without discussion. Any Council member wishing to discuss an item may request it be removed and placed on the regular agenda.) a. Approve minutes of the November 15th, 2022 Council meeting.

- b. Approve payroll purchase orders through December 9th, 2022.
- c. Approve claims for purchase orders through December 6th, 2022.

<u>FUNDS</u>	PURCHASE ORDER NUMBER	TOTALS
GENERAL	2220221374 – 911297B	98,445.37
STREET & DRAINAGE	911313B - 2220221380	114,605.51
GOLF COURSE	2220221316 - 2220221325	15,345.53
CAPITAL OUTLAY	2220221195 - 2220221343	34,011.19
REAL PROPERTY ACQUIS. RESERVE	911298B	1,225.00
RECREATION CENTER	2220221209 - 2220221216	36,392.47
E-911	2220221267	142.06
LIBRARY SPECIAL	2220220263	10,155.00
DONATIONS AND EARMARKED	2220221330 - 2220221384	4,109.80
	TOTAL	314.431.93

NO BLANKETS

- d. Acknowledge receipt of deficient purchase orders. *There were no deficient purchase orders.*
- e. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of the 2023 City of Pryor Creek / Municipal Utility Board Holiday Calendar.
- f. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of the schedule for the 2023 City of Pryor Creek Council meetings.
- g. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of the schedule for the 2023 City of Pryor Creek Budget and Personnel Committee meetings.
- h. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of the schedule for the 2023 City of Pryor Creek Street Committee meetings.
- i. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of the schedule for the 2023 City of Pryor Creek Park / Cemetery Board meetings.
- j. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of the schedule for the 2023 City of Pryor Creek Planning and Zoning Commission meetings.
- k. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of the schedule for the 2023 City of Pryor Creek Planning and Zoning Board of Adjustments / Multi-Hazard Mitigation Committee meetings.
- 1. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of the schedule for the 2023 City of Pryor Creek Recreation Center Board meetings.
- m. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of the schedule for the 2023 Library Board meetings.
- n. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of the schedule for the 2023 Ordinance and Insurance Committee meetings.
- o. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of the schedule for the 2023 Flood Plain Board meetings.
- p. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of the schedule for the 2023 Hotel / Motel Tax Allocation Board meetings.
- q. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of the schedule for the 2023 Economic Development Trust Authority meetings.
- r. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of the schedule for the 2023 Personnel Board meetings.
- s. Acknowledge 2023 Municipal Utility Board Meeting Schedule.
- t. Discussion and possible action regarding request for waiver of building permit fees for a storage building at the Mayes County Fairgrounds, to be used by Mayes County Emergency Management.
- u. Discussion and possible action regarding an expenditure in the amount of \$2,988.00 to ArchiveSocial, Inc. for the annual social media archiving subscription from General Software Account #02-201-5260.
- v. Discussion and possible action regarding the reappointment of Fred Sordahl to the Economic Development Trust Authority, Seat #3, term ending 1/13/27.
- w. Discussion and possible action regarding the reappointment of Don Berger to the Economic Development Trust Authority, Seat #4, term ending 1/13/27.
- x. Discussion and possible action regarding an expenditure not to exceed \$5,200.00 to Homeland for 100 gifts cards in the amount of \$50.00 each to show appreciation to full-time City employees and 8 gift cards in the amount of \$25.00 to show appreciation to part-time City employees from the Christmas Employee Appreciation Account #02-201-5333.

- y. Discussion and possible action regarding hiring Zachariah Gipson to Volunteer Firefighter position at the Pryor Creek Fire Department, effective December 7th, 2022.
- z. Discussion and possible action regarding accepting bid from Tibbets Trucking, in the amount of \$5,150.00 for the demolition of property at 305 N Mayes, owned by Nora Kinion, from Nuisance Abatement Account #46-465-5450. Other bids received: All Terrain Demolition and Excavation, \$6,800.00; Kustom Kutts LLC, \$19,500.00.
- aa. Discussion and possible action regarding an expenditure in the amount of \$8,539.95 to Pryor Chevrolet for the repair of a 2015 Tahoe (motor replacement), as in the best interest of the city from Police Repair & Maintenance Account #02-215-5092. Jay Hatfield Chevrolet of Vinita is unable to get a motor. Other bids received: Jay Hatfield Chevrolet of Vinita, \$8,157.57; Mike's Tire & Car Care, \$8,557.07. All bids received will come with a 36-month 100,000mile warranty.
- bb. Discussion and possible action regarding an expenditure in the amount of \$2,750.00 to Electrical Services, Inc. for repair of the pool pump at the Pryor Creek Recreation Center from Aquatics Repair and Maintenance Account #84-846-5091, from bids received. Other bid received: S&D Electric Motors, Inc., \$3,000.00. This action is pending approval by the Recreation Board on December 5th, 2022.

Motion was made by Gonthier, second by Nance to approve items a – bb, less items a, t and y. Voting yes: Barham, Gonthier, Siever, Nance, Smith, Chitwood. Abstaining, counting as a no vote: Lamar. Voting no: none.

a. Approve minutes of the November 15th, 2022 Council meeting.

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Smith to approve minutes of the November 15th, 2022 Council meeting. Voting yes: Gonthier, Siever, Nance, Smith, Chitwood, Barham. Abstaining, counting as a no vote: Lamar. Voting no: none.

t. Discussion and possible action regarding request for waiver of building permit fees for a storage

building at the Mayes County Fairgrounds, to be used by Mayes County Emergency Management. Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Smith to approve request for waiver of building permit fees for a storage building at the Mayes County Fairgrounds, to be used by Mayes County Emergency Management. Voting yes: Siever, Lamar, Nance, Chitwood, Barham, Gonthier. Abstaining, counting as a no vote: Smith. Voting no: none.

y. Discussion and possible action regarding hiring Zachariah Gipson to Volunteer Firefighter position at the Pryor Creek Fire Department, effective December 7th, 2022.

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Smith to approve hiring Zachariah Gipson to Volunteer Firefighter position at the Pryor Creek Fire Department, effective December 7th, 2022. Voting yes: Lamar, Nance, Smith, Chitwood, Barham, Gonthier, Siever. Voting no: none.

7. COMMITTEE REPORTS: a. Budget and Personnel (Shropshire)

No report.

Smith had no report.

b. Ordinance and Insurance (Shropshire)

c. Street (Smith)

The Ordinance and Insurance Committee will meet on Monday, December 12th, 2022.

8. UNFORESEEABLE BUSINESS.

(ANY MATTER NOT REASONABLY FORESEEN PRIOR TO POSTING OF AGENDA.)

There was no unforeseeable business.

9. ADJOURN.

Motion was made by Gonthier, second by Nance to adjourn. Voting yes: Nance, Smith, Chitwood, Barham, Gonthier, Siever, Lamar. Voting no: none.

PRYOR PUBLIC WORKS AUTHORITY 1. CALL TO ORDER.

Meeting was called to order at 8:45 p.m.

2. APPROVE MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 15th, 2022 MEETING.

Motion was made by Gonthier, second by Smith to approve minutes of November 15th, 2022 meeting. Voting yes: Smith, Chitwood, Barham, Gonthier, Siever, Nance. Abstaining, counting as a no vote: Lamar. Voting no: none.

3. UNFORESEEABLE BUSINESS.

(ANY MATTER NOT REASONABLY FORESEEN PRIOR TO POSTING OF AGENDA.)

There was no unforeseeable business.

4. ADJOURN.

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Smith to adjourn. Voting yes: Chitwood, Barham, Gonthier, Siever, Lamar, Nance, Smith. Voting no: none.

MINUTES APPROVED BY MAYOR / P.P.W.A. CHAIRMAN LARRY LEES

MINUTES WRITTEN BY CITY CLERK/P.P.W.A. SECRETARY EVA SMITH

MINUTES SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA TUESDAY, DECEMBER 13TH, 2022 AT 6:00 P.M.

The City Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma met in special session on the above date and time in the Council Chamber upstairs at City Hall, 12 North Rowe Street in Pryor Creek, Oklahoma. Notice of this meeting was posted on the East bulletin board located outside to the South of the entrance doors and the City website at www.pryorcreek.org. Notice was also e-mailed to The Paper newspaper and e-mailed to the Council members.

1. CALL TO ORDER, PRAYER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL.

Mayor Lees called the meeting to order at 6:15 p.m. The Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance were led by Larry Lees. Roll Call was conducted by City Clerk Eva Smith. Council members present included: Terry Lamar, Steve Smith, Randy Chitwood, Evett Barham, Chris Gonthier, Lori Siever. Members absent: Choya Shropshire and Dennis Nance.

Department Heads and other City Officials present: Kim Ritchie, Police Chief Dennis Nichols, Assistant Police Chief James Willyard and Library Director Cari Rerat.

Others present: CMSWillowbrook representative Bryan Miles, Charles Tramel and Terry Aylward.

2. DISCUSSION REGARDING PAY APPLICATIONS #21 AND #22 WITH CMSWILLOWBROOK. No action. Bryan Miles spoke to Council and answered Council's questions line-by-line regarding Pay Applications #21 and #22.

At 6:45 p.m., a 10-minute break was called. Discussion resumed at 6:55 p.m.

3. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING REMOVING FROM THE TABLE ITEM #2 OF THE DECEMBER 6TH, 2022 COUNCIL ADDENDUM.

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Smith to approve removing from the table Item #2 of the December 6th, 2022 Council Addendum. Voting yes: Lamar, Smith, Chitwood, Barham, Gonthier, Siever. Voting no: none.

4. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING APPROVAL OF APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATION FOR PAYMENT #21 DATED NOVEMBER 3RD, 2022 TO CMSWILLOWBROOK, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF \$499,485.48 FROM FUND 05, COVID REIMBURSEMENT (2020).

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Smith to approve Application and Certification for Payment #21 dated November 3rd, 2022 to CMSWillowbrook, Inc. in the amount of \$499,485.48 from Fund 05, Covid Reimbursement (2020). Voting yes: Smith, Chitwood, Barham, Gonthier, Siever. Voting no: Lamar.

5. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING APPROVAL OF APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATION FOR PAYMENT #22 DATED DECEMBER 6TH, 2022 TO CMSWILLOWBROOK, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF \$194,735.36 FROM FUND 05, COVID REIMBURSEMENT (2020).

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Smith to approve Application and Certification for Payment #22 dated December 6th, 2022 to CMSWillowbrook, Inc. in the amount of \$194,735.36 from Fund 05, Covid Reimbursement (2020). Voting yes: Chitwood, Barham, Siever, Smith. Abstaining, counting as a no vote: Gonthier. Voting no: Lamar.

6. ADJOURN.

Motion was made by Lamar, second by Gonthier to adjourn. Voting yes: Barham, Gonthier, Siever, Lamar, Smith, Chitwood. Voting no: none.

MINUTES APPROVED BY MAYOR LARRY LEES

MINUTES WRITTEN BY CITY CLERK EVA SMITH

HOTEL / MOTEL TAX ALLOCATION GRANT PROJECT APPLICATION



To be considered for the City of Pryor Creek Hotel / Motel Tax Allocation Grant, please complete the form below.

Street address:			
Street address line 2:			
City:	St	tate:	Zip code:
Contact Person			
First name:	La	ast name:	
Phone number:	E	-mail:	
Is your organization a non-pro (3) of the Internal Revenue C Yes No		organization as defi	ned under Section 501(c)
Requested amount:	Applicant's Match amour	nt: Total Pro	oject Budget:

Description of event or project summary:

Provide a paragraph, a concise summary of your request and what it will accomplish. If your request is part of a larger project, you may briefly describe the over all project. However, please focus the bulk of your answer on the specific element for which you are requesting funding.

Where and when will the event take place?

Resources available for project / event:

PROJECT BUDGET

Please detail the budget for your project. Specify whether your various match items will be cash or in-kind.

Pro-Forma Project Title:

Revenues:

Total Requested from Hotel / Motel:

Total Project Revenues:

Expenses:

Advertising

Promotional Printing

Miscellaneous expenses:

Total Expenses:

BONEY'S DIESEL AND AUTOMOTIVE

1928 OLD HIGHWAY 33 Chouteau, OK. 74337 Phone: 918-476-4028 Fax: 918-476-4029 okdiesel@live.com

ESTIMATE #

003976

Lic # : CI27770 - 74361 Odom. In: 4915 Unit # : BRUSH #2 Office: 918-803-8713 VIN # : 1FDRF3HTX GED14883	PRYOR FIRE DEPARTMENT
QtySaleExtLabor DescriptionExtended1.00 4, 173.934, 173.93REGEN ISSUE P2459277.502.007.8915.78REMOVED DPF FILTER, CLEANED FILTER, DONE FORCED REGEN, STILL WOULD NOT CLEAN UP REPAIR277.50	833 S ELLIOTT OK, 74361 PRYOR Cell: 918-530-0432 BK Office:
1.004, 173.934, 173.93NEOECTOROUT 21002.007.8915.78REMOVED DPF FILTER, CLEANED FILTER, DONE FORCED REGEN, STILL WOULD NOT CLEAN UP REPAIR277.50	Part Description / Number
2.007.8915.78REMOVED DPF FILTER, CLEANED FILTER, DONE FORCED REGEN, STILL WOULD NOT CLEAN UP REPAIR277.50	DPF FILTER
2.00 7.89 15.78 REGEN, STILL WOULD NOT CLEAN UP REPAIR 277.50	FC3Z-5H270D
	DPF GASKET
60.79 REMOVE AND INSTALL NEW DRE FILTER RESET INDUTS	BC3Z-5E241-A
AND CLEAR FAULTS	Shop Supplies
	*
~	
	÷
Labor: 555.00 Total : \$ 4,805.50	Parts/Supplies: 4,250.50 Labor:

TEARDOWN ESTIMATE: I understand that my vehicle will be reassembled within _____ days of the date shown above if I choose not to authorize the service recommended . All Parts removed will be discarded unless instructed otherwise: Save all Parts _____. NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR LOSS OR DAMAGE TO CARS OR ARTICLES LEFT IN CARS IN CASE OF FIRE, THEFT OR ANY OTHER CAUSE. Signature Date

Bostick Electric LLC

OK LIC 33987

PO BOX 141 Pryor, OK 74362 918-373-1542 DATE: December 16, 2022 INVOICE # 3298 FOR: Rec center lights

Bill To: Gary Buffington City of Pryor 12 N Rowe Pryor, OK 74361

	DESCRIPTION		AMOUNT
12/14/22 Started replacing the pa	rking lot pole lights with new led bulbs		
12/15/22 Replaced parking lot pol	e lights with new led bulbs		
12/16/22 Replaced parking lot pol	e light and repulled wire in one due to v	vire falling into	
pole			
1			
Price as per quote			6,729.00
Extra material and labor f	for wire repull		154.92
			104.52
1		*	
Lounal Co	approved 11/15/2020	6729.00	. .
		TOTAL	\$ 6,883.92

Payment due upon receipt Make all checks payable to Bostick Electric LLC If you have any questions please call Jack Bostick at 918-373-1542

b. Second reading, discussion and possible action regarding an Ordinance Amending Title 3, Chapter 2A, Section 7 Regarding Mobile Food Services "Restrictions on Location as to Time" by repealing said Section 7 of Title 3, Chapter 2A; and providing for repealer and severability.

Motion was made by Shropshire, second by Chitwood to waive reading of an Ordinance Amending Title 3, Chapter 2A, Section 7 Regarding Mobile Food Services "Restrictions on Location as to Time" by repealing said Section 7 of Title 3, Chapter 2A; and providing for repealer and severability. Voting yes: Gonthier, Siever, Shropshire, Nance, Smith, Chitwood, Barham. Voting no: none.

c. First reading of an Ordinance regarding occupation of recreational type trailers or recreational vehicles as living quarters.

Motion was made by Shropshire, second by Nance to table first reading of an Ordinance regarding occupation of recreational type trailers or recreational vehicles as living quarters. Voting yes: Siever, Shropshire, Nance, Smith, Chitwood, Barham, Gonthier. Voting no: none.

6. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON CONSENT AGENDA.

(Items deemed non-controversial and routine in nature to be approved by one motion without discussion. Any Council member wishing to discuss an item may request it be removed and placed on the regular agenda.)

- a. Approve minutes of the November 1st, 2022 Council meeting.
- b. Approve payroll purchase orders through November 25th, 2022.
- c. Approve claims for purchase orders through November 15th, 2022.

FUNDS	PURCHASE ORDER NUMBER	TOTALS
GENERAL	2220221113 - 2220221169	186,955.14
STREET & DRAINAGE	2220221188 - 911317B	7,139.29
GOLF COURSE	2220221132 - 911301B	12,109.22
CAPITAL OUTLAY	2220220720 - 911294B	62,722.39
REAL PROPERTY ACQUIS. RESERVE	2220221114 - 2220221171	960.00
RECREATION CENTER	2220221095 - 2220221101	22,768.11
PRYOR PUBLIC WORKS AUTHORITY	2220221122 - 2220221123	4,800.00
DONATIONS AND EARMARKED	2220221159 - 2220221078	4,052.19

TOTAL 301,506.34

NO BLANKETS

- d. Acknowledge receipt of deficient purchase orders. *There were no deficient purchase orders.*
- e. Approve July 2022 Appropriations Requests.
- f. Approve August 2022 Appropriations Requests.
- g. Approve September 2022 Appropriations Requests.
- h. Discussion and possible action regarding hire of Caleb Peper to the Pryor Creek Fire Department at Range N, Step 1 (annual wage - \$37,872.00), effective December 12th, 2022, pending pension physical.
- i. Discussion and possible action regarding hire of Wyatt Murphy to the Pryor Creek Fire Department at Range N, Step 1 (annual wage \$37,872.00), effective December 13th, 2022, pending pension physical.
- j. Discussion and possible action regarding hire of Christian Fletcher to the Pryor Creek Fire Department at Range N, Step 1 (annual wage \$37,872.00), effective December 14th, 2022, pending pension physical.
- k. Discussion and possible action authorizing Mayor to sign a sponsorship agreement dated, May 27th, 2022, between Pryor Creek Recreation Center and Mid America Industrial Park for their contribution to the citizens of Pryor Creek in sponsoring the National Fitness Campaign outdoor fitness court, constructed on the grounds of our Recreation Center.
- 1. Discussion and possible action regarding Hotel / Motel grant application from Pryor Main Street in the amount of \$6,771.00 for a Lights-On Downtown Community Tree.
- m. Discussion and possible action regarding Hotel / Motel grant application from Pryor Area Chamber of Commerce in the amount of \$2,900.00 for the 2022 Christmas Parade of Lights on December 1st, 2022.
- n. Discussion and possible action regarding Hotel / Motel grant application from Pryor Area Chamber of Commerce in the amount of \$2,300.00 for a Nativity Museum Christmas Pop-Up from November 3rd, 2022 through January 1st, 2023.
- o. Discussion and possible action regarding seeking applications for budgeted part-time position at the Thomas J. Harrison Pryor Public Library.
- p. Discussion and possible action regarding an expenditure in the amount of \$6,729.00 to Bostick Electric for replacement of parking lot lights with LED bulbs at the Pryor Creek Recreation Center from Recreation Repair and Maintenance Account #84-845-5091. Other bids received:

2 J's Electric Inc., in the amount of \$7,850.00; Electrical Services Inc., in the amount of \$12,000.00.

q. Acknowledge emergency expenditure in the amount of \$8,000.00 to JayCo Heat & Air as in the best interest of the city to rebuild the #6 HVAC compressor at the Pryor Creek Recreation Center from Recreation Capital Outlay Account #84-845-5410. No other bids received.

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Shropshire to approve items a - q, less items a, h i, j and o. Voting yes: Shropshire, Nance, Smith, Chitwood, Barham, Gonthier, Siever. Voting no: none.

a. Approve minutes of the November 1st, 2022 Council meeting.

Motion was made by Shropshire, second by Smith to approve minutes of the November 1st, 2022 Council meeting. Voting yes: Nance, Smith, Barham, Gonthier, Siever, Shropshire. Abstaining, counting as a no vote: Chitwood. Voting no: none.

h. Discussion and possible action regarding hire of Caleb Peper to the Pryor Creek Fire Department at

Range N, Step 1 (annual wage - \$37,872.00), effective December 12th, 2022, pending pension physical. Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Smith to approve hire of Caleb Peper to the Pryor Creek Fire Department at Range N, Step 1 (annual wage - \$37,872.00), effective December 12th, 2022, pending pension physical. Voting yes: Smith, Chitwood, Barham, Siever, Shropshire, Nance. Abstaining, counting as a no vote: Gonthier. Voting no: none.

i. Discussion and possible action regarding hire of Wyatt Murphy to the Pryor Creek Fire Department at Range N, Step 1 (annual wage - \$37,872.00), effective December 13th, 2022, pending pension physical. Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Smith to approve hire of Wyatt Murphy to the Pryor Creek Fire Department at Range N, Step 1 (annual wage - \$37,872.00), effective December 13th, 2022, pending pension physical. Voting yes: Chitwood, Barham, Siever, Shropshire, Nance, Smith. Abstaining, counting as a no vote: Gonthier. Voting no: none.

j. Discussion and possible action regarding hire of Christian Fletcher to the Pryor Creek Fire Department at Range N, Step 1 (annual wage - \$37,872.00), effective December 14th, 2022, pending pension physical.

Motion was made by Shropshire, second by Chitwood to approve hire of Christian Fletcher to the Pryor Creek Fire Department at Range N, Step 1 (annual wage - \$37,872.00), effective December 14th, 2022, pending pension physical. Voting yes: Barham, Siever, Shropshire, Nance, Smith, Chitwood. Abstaining, counting as a no vote: Gonthier. Voting no: none.

o. Discussion and possible action regarding seeking applications for budgeted part-time position at the Thomas J. Harrison Pryor Public Library.

Motion was made by Shropshire, second by Smith to approve seeking applications for budgeted part-time position at the Thomas J. Harrison Pryor Public Library. Voting yes: Siever, Shropshire, Nance, Smith, Chitwood, Barham. Voting no: Gonthier.

Mayor moved to the Addendum.

ADDENDUM

CITY COUNCIL MEETING

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 15TH, 2022 AT 6:00 P.M.

1. Discussion and possible action regarding an expenditure in the amount of \$5,458.97 to Digi Security Systems for two (2) Intercoms, four (4) PDU Units, two (2) Micro PC's for TV, and labor, from Police Capital Outlay Account #44-445-5424. This is State contract pricing and needed for the security system for the Emergency Services Center.

Motion was made by Gonthier, second by Chitwood to approve an expenditure in the amount of \$5,458.97 to Digi Security Systems for two (2) Intercoms, four (4) PDU Units, two (2) Micro PC's for TV, and labor, from Police Capital Outlay Account #44-445-5424. This is State contract pricing and needed for the security system for the Emergency Services Center. Voting yes: Siever, Shropshire, Nance, Smith, Chitwood, Barham, Gonthier. Voting no: none.

Mayor moved back to the regular Agenda.

7. COMMITTEE REPORTS:

a. Budget and Personnel (Shropshire)

Shropshire reported that the next Budget and Personnel Committee meeting will be December 13th, 2022.

b. Ordinance and Insurance (Shropshire)

Page 4 of 5

PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA